

CONSTITUTION

Associated Students of Oregon Institute of Technology

Article I. Preamble

We, the students of Oregon Institute of Technology (Oregon Tech), acting by and through the authority delegated by the Oregon Tech Board of Trustees in Resolution 15-2, do hereby establish this constitution to protect and advance the collective interests of the students of this university. We authorize the association herein as the recognized agent for all matters pertaining to the collective students of OIT.

Article II. Student Bill of Rights

Section 1. Framing Narrative

- **1.1.** We, the Students of the Oregon Institute of Technology, hereby affirm this document in order to preserve and inform students of their rights. In accepting these rights, students also accept the responsibility to act in a mature and responsible manner, laid out in the <u>Student Code of Conduct</u>, to further the mission of Oregon Tech: providing a hands-on, project-based learning environment that fosters innovation, scholarship, applied research, and the technical expertise to meet current and emerging needs of Oregonians as well as other national and international constituents.
- 1.2. As members of this academic community, students should be encouraged to develop their own critical judgment and to engage in a sustained and independent search for truth. Freedom to teach and freedom to learn are inseparable facets of academic freedom. The freedom to learn depends upon opportunities and conditions in the classroom, on the campus, and in the larger community. The responsibility to secure and to respect general conditions conducive to the freedom to learn is jointly shared by all members of the academic community. Students exercising the rights and freedoms defined in this document shall do so with concomitant responsibilities as prerequisites for achievement of the educational objectives involved.
- **1.3.** A regard for the University as a physical as well as a social entity is a condition of its satisfactory functioning. The University has a duty to develop policies and procedures which provide and safeguard these conditions. Policies and procedures should be developed at the University within a framework of general standards and with the broadest possible participation of the members of the academic community.
- **1.4.** The purpose of the following is to enumerate essential student freedoms. The term "student" shall herein refer to any person registered at the University for any course at any level. The term "university" shall herein refer to the Oregon Institute of Technology, including associated staff, faculty, and administration.

Section 2. Student Rights

- **2.1.** Every student has the right to an inclusive, high-quality education, including adequate means of support for progressing through and completing their degree program in the prescribed amount of time.
- **2.2.** All students have the right to co-governance in all University decision-making bodies and fora relevant to their education, either directly or through democratic representation, with the right to be considered an equal stakeholder in higher education, including in financial matters.
- **2.3.** All students have the right to freely express themselves, not limited to academic matters, and shall have their different backgrounds and experiences recognized as an important part of educational quality.
- **2.4.** All students have the right to organize themselves freely in legally recognized entities. Students must not suffer academic, financial, or legal consequences stemming from such involvement.
- **2.5.** All students have the right to a free and fair appeal against any University act which they feel to be discriminatory.
- **2.6.** All students have the right to adequate counselling and support on their wellbeing; on how to successfully complete their education; on how to prepare themselves for the job market after completing their education.
- **2.7.** All students have the right to teaching and evaluation methods suitable to their mode of education and shall be evaluated or graded solely on academic performance which are specifically counted as part of their degree program.
- **2.8.** All students have the right to a free and fair appeal against any University decision related to their studies, including the right to have the grading of their academic work challenged by an external examiner.

Article III. Purpose and Membership

Section 1. Duties and Delegation

- **1.1.** This organization shall be known as the Associated Students of Oregon Institute of Technology (ASOIT).
- **1.2.** ASOIT will support the social, cultural, physical, and educational pursuits of its members, and represent the individual and collective interests of Oregon Tech students.
- **1.3.** ASOIT membership consists of all currently enrolled students in good academic standing (2.5 per term/ accumulated GPA) at Oregon Tech.

Section 2. Organization

- **2.1.** Oregon Tech Klamath Falls and Oregon Tech Portland-Metro shall have their own ASOIT Cabinet united by this Constitution and the ASOIT Council.
- **2.2.** Klamath Falls and Portland-Metro campuses shall have their own Bylaws outlining their individual procedures. This document will enable a series of policies and guidelines.

- 2.2.1. Bylaws shall be amended by an established quorum and a supermajority vote (2/3) of the respective campus Parliament of Owls, defined as all standing ASOIT Cabinet Members and Registered Student Organization (RSO) representatives from their respective campus (see Article V, Section 2.2).
- **2.2.2.** Policies are binding documents and shall be enabled, amended, and disabled for each campus by a supermajority vote (2/3) of the Executive Cabinet at that campus.
- **2.2.3.** Guidelines are ASOIT-endorsed, non-binding documents which inform, suggest courses of action, or set routines.
- **2.3.** The ASOIT Council is composed of the President, Vice-President, and Advisors from both campuses and is open to all standing ASOIT Cabinet Members.
 - **2.3.1.** The ASOIT Council is charged with sharing knowledge and collaborate on combined initiatives to connect the campuses' goals, projects, and common issues.
 - **2.3.2.** The Council will meet twice virtually or in person each Fall, Winter, and Spring term. A scheduled meeting may be waived if both parties confirm one (1) week in advance.
 - **2.3.3.** The responsibility for creating the meeting agenda and minutes will rotate campuses.
- **2.4.** Students may not hold more than one position in ASOIT at any given time.

Section 3. Committees

- **3.1.** Committees are established to assist the ASOIT Officers in carrying out their functions.
- **3.2.** The committees will form as necessary for the ASOIT officers.
- **3.3.** Committees are subject to specifications as outlined in the Bylaws.

Article IV. Amendment(s)

Section 1. Procedure

- 1.1. Proposed amendments to this Constitution must be submitted to the ASOIT Council.
- **1.2.** Public hearings must be held at a General Meeting at each campus on the amendment(s).
- **1.3.** The amendment(s) may then be approved and adopted by a supermajority vote (2/3) of attending ASOIT Officers and one (1) Representative of each RSO present at each campus.

Section 2. Enabling Clause

2.1. Once approved by the current membership of ASOIT, this Constitution becomes effective and supersedes all previous ASOIT Constitutions as of <u>Thursday</u>, <u>April 24, 2025</u>.





Associated Students of Oregon Institute of Technology Klamath Falls

Article I. Authority of the ASOIT KF Cabinet

Section 1 Delegation of Authority to the ASOIT KF Cabinet

- **1.1.** The Board of Trustees defines and delegates the governing authority to the Student Body to ASOIT KF in Board Resolution 15-2 on Shared Governance.
- **1.2.** The ASOIT KF Cabinet is authorized and required by the ASOIT KF Constitution. The ASOIT KF Constitution provides for the powers here vested upon the Cabinet.
- **1.3.** The ASOIT KF Cabinet shall be the ultimate legislative decision-making body of the internal affairs of Student Body of Oregon Tech Klamath Falls, in adherence to the Constitution and relevant University-wide policy and procedure.

Section 2. Duties to Shared Governance

- **2.1.** The ASOIT KF Cabinet shall have the following duties and responsibilities as a body acting in accord with the ASOIT KF Constitution:
 - **2.1.1.** Legislate internally on all matters of student interest.
 - **2.1.2.** Review all activities, business, policy, and property affecting the students of Oregon Tech Klamath Falls.
 - **2.1.3.** Investigate, initiate, and recommend student government and University-wide policy and present such recommendations or orders to the proper people.
 - **2.1.4.** Pass resolutions expressing its opinion on behalf of the student body to the University, University committees, or any part of ASOIT KF, except that the Cabinet may not issue resolutions regarding the result of judicial verdicts interior to ASOIT KF or the University.
 - **2.1.5.** The Cabinet shall have the power to legislate as necessary and properly carry out its duties and responsibilities.

Section 3. Ethical Responsibilities

- **3.1.** For the purposes of this document, advice is the recommendation of a specific course of action and guidance is the impartial service to help the Cabinet understand information and identify options with not providing a recommendation.
 - **3.1.1.** The Cabinet shall have the power to request the advice of other members of the Cabinet. No other person should be compelled to advise the Cabinet or any of its members.
 - **3.1.2.** No person shall give guidance if the opinion requested is outside of their area of expertise, creates a conflict of interest, or is defined as a duty of the Cabinet.
- 3.2. Any Cabinet Member positions paid for by ASOIT KF monies must be created as a resolution, approved by a quorum of the Cabinet at Executive Meetings with a supermajority vote (2/3), and presented to the student body at large to be approved by a quorum of RSO Leadership at the following General Meeting by a supermajority vote (2/3).

- **3.2.1.** Any ASOIT KF Cabinet Member shall be paid minimum wage plus one dollar.
- **3.2.2.** No ASOIT KF Cabinet Member shall work, and therefore claim, more than twenty (20) hours per week of ASOIT KF duties without ASOIT KF Advisor consultation and approval on a case-by-case basis

Article II. Officers

Section 1. Term of Office

- **1.1.** ASOIT Officers shall begin their term of office the first Monday following Commencement, or earlier as designated by the Election Committee.
 - **1.1.1.** The outgoing ASOIT Officers shall manage all meetings between the ASOIT Election and the new officer installation.
 - **1.1.2.** All accounts, scheduling, and ordering for the following year shall be passed on to the new officers upon installation.
- **1.2.** The term of office for the current administration ends upon the installation of the new officers.
- **1.3.** Any officer, once removed from ASOIT for any reason, cannot be eligible to hold any ASOIT position for the remainder of that academic year.

Section 2. Vacancies

- **2.1.** In the event of a vacancy in the office of President, the Vice President shall assume the duties of and serve as the Interim President for the remaining term of office.
- **2.2.** If the Vice President position becomes vacant, the Chief of Staff shall partner with the President and assume the roles and responsibilities of the Vice President.
- **2.3.** All other vacancies shall follow the hierarchy of the Cabinet as defined in the Bylaws, within 30 days of the date that the vacancy occurs, excluding school vacations and holidays. These Interims are subject to majority approval of the ASOIT Officers at the campus of the vacancy.
- **2.4.** Should a vacancy occur after one half of the academic year is complete, then the vacant position shall be filled by an equitable selection process as outlined in the Bylaws. Standing ASOIT officers may fulfill the responsibilities of the position at the discretion of the respective Executive Cabinet.

Section 3. Termination

- **3.1.** Any non-elected ASOIT Officer may be terminated and removed from office for failure to perform their duties as described in this Constitution and its Bylaws or by violating the Student Code of Conduct.
- 3.2. Termination and removal shall be affected by a unanimous decision between both the President and Vice President, unless one of these positions is up for termination then the standing ASOIT officers must vote in a supermajority (3/4) to terminate. A letter, giving arguments for the officer's removal, must be provided to the officer being removed and to the remaining ASOIT Officers. The letter must be sent to ASOIT 3 days before the next General Meeting. Terminations are subject to the approval of the ASOIT Advisors.

Section 4. Penalty

4.1. Any ASOIT Officer may be penalized by written warning from the ASOIT Advisors for failure to perform duties as outlined in the Bylaws. Failure to comply may result

in further disciplinary action.

Section 5. Absences

- 5.1. Any ASOIT Officer will be removed from office after their second unexcused absence from a regularly scheduled meeting in any academic term or after the third unexcused absence during their term of office.
- **5.2.** Excused absences consist of a valid reason and advanced notification, at least six hours prior, given to, and approved by, the President or an ASOIT Advisor.
- **5.3.** In the event that the President is absent, the officer needs to be excused by an ASOIT Advisor.

Article III. Cabinet Composition

Section 1. Qualifications of the ASOIT KF Cabinet

- **1.1.** All elected, selected, and potential Cabinet Members must have met membership qualifications as outlined in the bylaws.
- **1.2.** A candidate for any ASOIT office must have a cumulative grade point average of 2.75 or above, and maintain a 2.75 or above grade point average every term served in the office.
- **1.3.** All elected, selected, and appointed Cabinet Members shall hold no other student-employee positions, unless approved by the ASOIT Advisors(s) on a case-by-case basis.
- 1.4. ASOIT Cabinet Members must be full-time students. Undergraduate students must be registered for and complete twelve (12) or more credit hours per term served in office, and graduate students must be registered for and complete nine (9) or more credit hours per term served in office.
- 1.5. Cabinet members must maintain active status throughout their term(s) of service. When appointed to any committee/commission exterior to the Cabinet, members must attend the meetings of the respective committees/commissions. Absences from exterior meetings shall be counted as equal to absences from interior meetings.
 - **1.5.1.** The Cabinet may excuse an absence from any meeting if the Cabinet member submits a request for absence from the meeting one (1) week prior to the meeting.
 - **1.5.2.** Extenuating circumstances, such as illness or tragedy, excuses any Cabinet member from attendance.
- **1.6.** Cabinet members who fail to meet their duties and responsibilities as outlined in Article III, Section 1.1 through 1.5, Section 3, and Section 5 shall be subject to the following proceedings:
 - **1.6.1.** Cabinet members who fail to attend standing exterior committee/commission meetings shall be charged with one (1) absence toward their quarter Cabinet attendance record for each such absence.
 - **1.6.2.** Cabinet members who fail to attend Executive and General ASOIT KF meetings will be charged with one (1) absence toward their quarter Cabinet attendance record for each such absence.

1.7. No Cabinet member shall have more than two (2) absences per quarter or be subject to Sanctions as defined in Article IV, Section 3.

Section 2. Hierarchy of the Cabinet

- 2.1. In the event that the Cabinet experiences a mid-term vacancy, the remaining Cabinet Members shall, at the discretion and approval of the ASOIT KF Advisors, adopt the roles and responsibilities of other Members in the following order:
 - **2.1.1.** If the President position becomes vacant, the Vice President shall assume the roles and responsibilities of the President.
 - **2.1.2.** If the Vice President position becomes vacant, the Finance Officer shall partner with the President and assume the roles and responsibilities of the Vice President.
 - **2.1.3.** If any other position becomes vacant (Administrative Affairs Officer, Academic Affairs Officer, Student Engagement Officer), the Finance Officer shall partner with the Vice President and other relevant Officers to assume the roles and responsibilities of the Administrative Affairs Officer.
- **2.2.** In the event that a Sanction, as defined in Article II Sections 2, 3, and 4, is brought against a standing or elected Cabinet Member, that member shall be relieved of all authority until the sanctions are resolved at no-fault.
 - **2.2.1.** During the proceedings of the Sanction, the Cabinet Member with the next highest authority shall act as an Interim in place of the Accused Cabinet Member. The hierarchy of authority by position is as follows:
 - **2.2.1.1.** President has the highest authority.
 - **2.2.1.2.** Vice President has the highest authority except the President.
 - **2.2.1.3.** Finance Officer has the highest authority except the President and Vice President.
 - **2.2.1.4.** Administrative Affairs Officer has the next highest authority after President, Vice President, and Finance Officer.
 - **2.2.1.5.** Academic Affairs Officer has the next highest authority.
 - **2.2.1.6.** Student Engagement Officer has the next highest authority.
- 2.3. In the event that a sanction, as defined in Article II Sections 2, 3, and 4, and Article IV Section 3 is brought against a standing or elected Cabinet Member, and the Accused Member is found at-fault, as defined in Article IV Section, 3, , and are relieved permanently from their role, the hierarchy of authority as defined in Article III Section 2.1 is to be followed.

Section 3. Joint Cabinet Member Responsibilities

- **3.1.** All elected, selected, and potential Cabinet Members shall act in the best interest of the entire Klamath Falls student body.
- **3.2.** All elected, selected, and potential Cabinet Members shall share the responsibility of establishing a progressive and productive student government.
- **3.3.** All elected, selected, and potential Cabinet Members shall be familiar with the contents of this document, the ASOIT Constitution, relevant policies, and assume responsibility to ensure that the stated documents reflect the current policy and practices of ASOIT KF.
- 3.4. All elected, selected, and potential Cabinet Members shall support Registered Student Organizations (RSO) by attending events, collaborating, volunteering, and

will promote ASOIT KF when possible. Shared event expectation includes, but is not limited to:

- **3.4.1.** Blackout for Hunger
- **3.4.2.** Voter registration events
- **3.5.** All elected, selected, and potential Cabinet Members shall assist one another in their position-specific duties as needed.
- **3.6.** All elected, selected, and potential Cabinet Members shall serve on campus committees/commissions as assigned or selected to represent students.
 - **3.6.1.** Oregon Tech policy cannot mandate any ASOIT KF Cabinet Member to serve in more than four (4) committees/commissions, however, any Cabinet Member may volunteer for more than four (4) positions, contingent on ASOIT Advisor approval on a case-by-case basis.

3.7. In-Office Service

- **3.7.1.** Cabinet Members will post their office hours within the first week of each academic term and notify the appropriate Cabinet Member in the case that office hours change.
- **3.7.2.** Cabinet Members will maintain the vibrancy of the Student Involvement and Belonging (SIB) office by being open, inviting, inclusive, and available to visitors while serving office hours and will use their time to conduct ASOIT KF business.

3.8. Reporting

3.8.1. Cabinet Members will report at Executive Meetings and General Meetings as appropriate on the work of their campus committees/commissions and progress on their position's tasks and projects.

Section 4. Interior Committees

- **4.1.** Interior Committees are defined as any committees consisting of ASOIT KF Cabinet Members with the exception of those committees outlined in the Bylaws or policies (i.e. Election Committee, Selection Committee).
- **4.2.** Regulations
 - **4.2.1.** Interior Committees shall form to deliberate on specific issues outside of scheduled Executive Meetings, form a recommendation based on a majority vote (2/3) within the Interior Committee, and report the Interior Committee's recommendation to the ASOIT Cabinet at the next Executive Meeting. Final authority on the matter rests with the ASOIT-KF President.
 - **4.2.2.** Membership on an Interior Committee shall be assigned to ASOIT KF Cabinet Members and can include student(s)-at-large at the discretion of the ASOIT KF Cabinet.
 - **4.2.3.** The termination of committee membership is at the discretion of the ASOIT KF President in consultation with advisors.

Section 5. Position-Specific Duties

5.1. President

- **5.1.1.** Serve as the chief spokesperson and representative of ASOIT KF, facilitating exterior communications and building partnerships, delegating as desired.
- **5.1.2.** Provide a report to the Board of Trustees, coordinating with Board of Trustees Secretary, once per term.
- **5.1.3.** In collaboration with the Vice President, meet with each member of the Cabinet Associated Students of Oregon Institute of Technology

- to monitor projects, offer support, and delegate as needed.
- **5.1.4.** Chair all Executive and General Meetings.
- **5.1.5.** Meet regularly, no less than twice per month, with ASOIT Advisor(s).
- **5.1.6.** Encourage each member of the Cabinet to meet regularly and build relationships with their administrative counterparts:
 - **5.1.6.1.** Vice President to meet with the Director of Diversity, Inclusion, and Cultural Engagement (DICE).
 - **5.1.6.2.** Finance Officer to meet with the Vice President of Finance and Administration.
 - **5.1.6.3.** Administrative Affairs Officer, under direction from the President, to meet with the Vice President of Institutional Advancement.
 - **5.1.6.4.** Academic Affairs Officer to meet with the Vice President of Academic Affairs and identified academic leaders
 - **5.1.6.5.** Student Engagement Officer to meet with the Vice President of Student Affairs.
- **5.1.7.** Serve in the Election Committee as defined by Article IV Section 1.
- **5.1.8.** In partnership with the ASOIT KF Vice President, collaborate regularly with ASOIT Portland-Metro (ASOIT PM) through ASOIT Council.
- **5.1.9.** Participate in University Lobby Day, representing Oregon Tech and advocating to State Senators and decision-makers.
 - **5.1.9.1.** ASOIT KF President and Vice President to share or split this duty as they see fit.
- **5.1.10.** Meet with the University President once per month.
- **5.1.11.** Represent ASOIT on the following commissions/committees:
 - **5.1.11.1.** Tuition Recommendation Committee (TRC).
 - **5.1.11.2.** Chair the Incidental Fees Commission (IFC).
- **5.1.12.** Serve as a student representative on a minimum of two (2) committees/commissions beyond the aforementioned responsibilities.
- **5.1.13.** Serve a minimum of twelve (12) hours per week, with at least eight (8) hours per week served in the SIB office.

5.2. Vice President(Chief of Staff)

- **5.2.1.** In collaboration with the President, meet with each member of the Cabinet to monitor projects, offer support, and delegate as needed.
- **5.2.2.** In case of the President's absence, or at the request of the President, the Vice President shall chair the Executive and General ASOIT KF meetings and serve as a delegate on any committee/commission the President serves.
- **5.2.3.** Chair the ASOIT KF Elections Committee per the ASOIT KF Election Bylaws.
- **5.2.4.** In partnership with the ASOIT KF President, collaborate regularly with ASOIT Portland-Metro (ASOIT PM) through ASOIT Council.
- **5.2.5.** Collaborate often with the finance officer and serve as their chief of staff.
- **5.2.6.** In collaboration with the Administrative Affairs Officer, create and maintain ASOIT KF governing documentation.
- **5.2.7.** Meet with the Director of Diversity, Inclusion, and Cultural Engagement (DICE) at least once per term.

- **5.2.7.1.** Identify barriers and ensure the success of historically underrepresented, underserved, and under resourced communities.
- **5.2.7.2.** Work to ensure compliance with Polytechnic Cultural Competency requirements and other relevant legislation.
- **5.2.8.** Serve as a student representative on a minimum of two (2) committees/commissions beyond the aforementioned responsibilities.
- **5.2.9.** Serve a minimum of twelve (12) hours per week, with at least eight (8) hours per week served in the SIB office.
- **5.2.10.** Report as the ASOIT delegate to the Faculty Senate
- **5.2.11.** Serve as a student representative on a minimum of three (3) committees/commissions beyond the aforementioned responsibilities.

5.2.12.

5.3. Finance Officer

- **5.3.1.** In the event of the Vice President's absence on an internal or external committee/commission, the Finance Officer shall assume roles and responsibilities as delegated by the ASOIT KF President.
- **5.3.2.** On any given year, if the Vice President serves as Chair or ASOIT KF representative on any external committee/commission, the Finance Officer shall serve as a student representative on that committee/commission.
- **5.3.3.** Serve as point-of-contact for ASOIT Special Consideration requests and work with ASOIT KF Cabinet in planning and utilizing the ASOIT Budget.
- **5.3.4.** In collaboration with the Student Involvement and Belonging Director, submit the ASOIT KF and Financial Allocation Committee (FAC) budget to the Incidental Fee Commission (IFC).
- **5.3.5.** Represent ASOIT on the following commissions/committees: **5.3.6.1.1.** Chair the Financial Allocation Committee (FAC).
- **5.3.6.** Serve as student representative on a minimum of three (3) committees/commissions beyond the aforementioned responsibilities.
- **5.3.7.** Serve a minimum of ten (10) hours per week, with at least six (6) hours per week served in the SIB office.
- **5.3.8.** Assist in tasks as delegated by the President or Vice President.

5.4. Administrative Affairs Officer

- **5.4.1.** Responsible for public relations within the campus and the community, updating and maintaining information on the ASOIT KF website, producing advertisements in collaboration with relevant ASOIT KF Officers, and producing press releases as needed.
- **5.4.2.** Responsible for oversight of the ASOIT email, and facilitating the appropriate responses as needed to address the emails.
- **5.4.3.** Responsible for preparing, recording, maintaining, and posting minutes and agendas of all ASOIT KF meetings on the ASOIT website.
 - **5.4.3.1.** General Meeting Agendas must be posted or otherwise distributed to all required participants of the General Meeting no later than one (1) week before the date of the General Meeting.
 - **5.4.3.2.** Executive Meeting Agendas must be posted or otherwise distributed to all required participants of the Executive Meeting no later than three (3) days before the date of the Executive Meeting.

- **5.4.3.3.** Draft minutes of Executive and General Meetings must be available for viewing no later than one (1) week after the Executive or General Meetings.
- **5.4.4.** In collaboration with the Vice President, create and maintain ASOIT KF governing documentation.
 - **5.4.4.1.** This includes working with the Office of Diversity, Inclusion, and Cultural Engagement (DICE) to adhere to Senate Bill 1586 regarding workplace harassment and other relevant University compliance requirements.
- **5.4.5.** In collaboration with the Student Engagement Officer, monitor and maintain RSO records and attendance at required meetings.
- **5.4.6.** Serve as student representative on a minimum of two (2) committees/commissions.
- **5.4.7.** Serve a minimum of ten (10) hours per week, with at least six (6) hours per week served in the SIB office.
- **5.4.8.** Assist in tasks as delegated by the President or Vice President.

5.5. College of HAS Academic Affairs Officer

- **5.5.1.** Facilitate the connection of students with their respective Deans and Department Chairs and serve as a conveyance for student concerns.
 - **5.5.1.1.** For identified academic student concerns: determine stakeholders, take appropriate action, track the status of issues, and communicate the process to the stakeholders involved.
 - **5.5.1.2.** Utilize Oregon Tech governance structure to effectively advocate for student concerns and feedback.
- **5.5.2.** Identify opportunities to connect students with academic support services, including but not limited to:
 - **5.5.2.1.** Departments responsible for academic success.
 - **5.5.2.2.** Facilitating communication and connection to relevant advising services.
 - **5.5.2.3.** Under direction from the Vice President, work with the Office of Diversity, Inclusion, and Cultural Engagement (DICE) to identify and remove barriers to ensure the academic success of historically underrepresented, underserved, and under resourced communities.
 - **5.5.2.4.** Advocating on behalf of students for necessary change or adjustment of current procedure including but not limited to accessibility to key areas on campus dedicated to academic success and current academic procedure.
- **5.5.3.** Meet with the Vice President of Academic Affairs a minimum of once per term, while identifying and meeting with other academic leaders (Dean of HAS, Chairs, etc) as needed by students and up to the discretion of ASOIT Advisors.
- **5.5.4.** Represent ASOIT on the following commissions/committees:
 - **5.5.4.1.** Commission on College Teaching (CCT).
 - **5.5.4.2.** Curriculum Planning Commission (CPC).
- **5.5.5.** Serve as student representative on a minimum of three (3) committees/commissions beyond the aforementioned responsibilities.
- **5.5.6.** Serve a minimum of ten (10) hours per week, with at least six (6) hours per week served in the SIB office.
- **5.5.7.** Assist in tasks as delegated by the President or Vice President.
- **5.5.8.** Format a weekly report to the Vice President

5.6. College of ETM Academic Affairs Officer

- **5.6.1.** Facilitate the connection of students with their respective Deans and Department Chairs and serve as a conveyance for student concerns.
 - **5.6.1.1.** For identified academic student concerns: determine stakeholders, take appropriate action, track the status of issues, and communicate the process to the stakeholders involved.
 - **5.6.1.2.** Utilize Oregon Tech governance structure to effectively advocate for student concerns and feedback.
- **5.6.2.** Identify opportunities to connect students with academic support services, including but not limited to:
 - **5.6.2.1.** Center for Academic Engagement and Resource Services (CARES).
 - **5.6.2.2.** Facilitating communication and connection to relevant advising services.
 - **5.6.2.3.** Under direction from the Vice President, work with the Office of Diversity, Inclusion, and Cultural Engagement (DICE) to identify and remove barriers to ensure the academic success of historically underrepresented, underserved, and under resourced communities.
 - **5.6.2.4.** Advocating on behalf of students for necessary change or adjustment of current procedure including but not limited to accessibility to key areas on campus dedicated to academic success and current academic procedure.
- **5.6.3.** Meet with the Vice President of Academic Affairs a minimum of once per term, while identifying and meeting with other academic leaders (Dean of ETM, Chairs, etc) as needed by students and up to the discretion of ASOIT Advisors.
- **5.6.4.** Represent ASOIT on the following commissions/committees:
 - **5.6.4.1.** Commission on College Teaching (CCT).
 - **5.6.4.2.** Curriculum Planning Commission (CPC).
- **5.6.5.** Serve as student representative on a minimum of three (3) committees/commissions beyond the aforementioned responsibilities.
- **5.6.6.** Serve a minimum of ten (10) hours per week, with at least six (6) hours per week served in the SIB office.
- **5.6.7.** Assist in tasks as delegated by the President or Vice President.
- **5.6.8.** Format a weekly report to the Vice President

5.7. Student Engagement Officer

- **5.7.1.** Responsible for communicating engagement opportunities to students frequently, including but not limited to:
 - **5.6.1.1.1.** Managing ASOIT social media accounts
 - **5.6.1.1.2.** Developing a framework for communicating events regularly with the student body at large.
- **5.7.2.** Organize ASOIT General Meetings at a minimum of twice per term, including advertising/marketing, and reminding clubs and programs leaders of upcoming meetings.
- **5.7.3.** Develop opportunities for students to share feedback via surveys, town hall meetings, focus groups, etc.
 - **5.6.3.1.1.** For identified student concerns: determine stakeholders, take appropriate action, track the status of issues, and communicate the process to the stakeholders involved.

- **5.6.3.1.2.** Utilize Oregon Tech governance structure to effectively advocate for student concerns and feedback.
- **5.7.4.** Coordinate partnerships and collaborative initiatives with the following campus departments (including, but not limited to):
 - **5.7.4.1.** Student Involvement and Belonging (SIB) to bring community service opportunities to campus,
 - **5.7.4.2.** Athletics Department to increase student involvement in Hootie's Hooligans at athletics events,
 - **5.7.4.3.** Under direction from the Vice President, work with the Office of Diversity, Inclusion, and Cultural Engagement (DICE) to identify barriers and ensure the success of historically underrepresented, underserved, and under resourced communities,
 - **5.7.4.4.** Campus Activity Borad (CAB) for event planning and implementation
- **5.7.5.** Meet with the Vice President of Student Affairs a minimum of once per term.
- **5.7.6.** Represent ASOIT on the following commissions/committees:
 - **5.7.6.1.** The Financial Allocation Committee (FAC)
 - **5.7.6.2.** Program Round Tables
 - **5.7.6.3.** Serve as student representative on a minimum of two (2) committees/commissions beyond the aforementioned responsibilities.
- **5.7.7.** Serve a minimum of ten (10) hours per week, with at least six (6) hours per week served in the SIB office
- **5.7.8.** Assist in tasks as delegated by the President or Vice President

Article IV. Elections, Selection, and Sanctions

Section 1. Elections

- **1.1.** Any currently enrolled Klamath Falls student at Oregon Tech is eligible to vote in the ASOIT KF Election.
- **1.2.** The ASOIT KF general election is the responsibility of the Election Committee.
 - **1.2.1.** The Election Committee is responsible for holding ASOIT KF Elections in a timely and compliant manner including organizing applications, publicity, election material, election booths, ballot counting, etc.
 - **1.2.2.** The Election Committee shall consist of any interested ASOIT Officers not seeking the position of President or Vice President of the Cabinet.
 - **1.2.3.** The Election Committee shall consist of at least four members. If needed, students- at-large may be added with the approval of the remainder of the Election Committee.
- **1.3.** The President and Vice President are the elected positions. The position roles and responsibilities as outlined in the Officer-Specific Duties Bylaws and application deadlines shall be posted for a minimum of two weeks prior to the application deadlines.
 - **1.3.1.** If the number of applicants does not surpass the threshold of 2 or more, for President and Vice President positions, then the process in which the applicants are accepted differs.
 - **1.3.1.1.** Else, if the threshold is surpassed, the current Election Bylaws starting at Article II will supersede this Amendment (Article I).

- **1.3.2.** Applicants will no longer have to run a campaign nor be needing students to vote in an election.
 - **1.3.2.1.** Applicants will now be interviewed by the current ASOIT Advisors, the Election Committee.
 - **1.3.2.2.** These applicants will also be chosen by the same ASOIT Advisors and the Election Committee.
- **1.4.** Applicants must submit an official application by the posted application deadline to be eligible to run for office.
- **1.5.** The ASOIT KF Elections will function in accordance with the appropriate campus ASOIT policy.
- **1.6.** Any elected ASOIT KF Officer may be removed from office through a recall petition.

Section 2. Selection of Cabinet Members

- **2.1.** The Cabinet positions of President and Vice-President are elected positions through a popular vote on campus.
- **2.2.** All other Cabinet members shall be hired positions by the Selection Committee.
 - **2.2.1.** The Selection Committee is comprised of the Election Committee and the newly-elected President and Vice-President.
 - **2.2.2.** The Selection Committee shall, with guidance from ASOIT KF Advisors, conduct an equitable application, interview, and hiring process.
 - **2.2.3.** For the Selection Committee to approve the hire of the Cabinet application, a 2/3 majority vote is required.

Section 3. Sanctions

- **3.1.** Any elected ASOIT KF Officer may be removed from office through a recall petition.
- **3.2.** Recall petitions must commence and be completed no later than the start date of the academic year that the Officer subject to recall is set to serve.
- **3.3.** Recall proceedings must adhere to the following procedure:
 - **3.3.1.** A move to recall an ASOIT KF Officer is initiated by submission of a petition, signed by at least fifty percent of the Registered Student Organizations (RSO) representatives at a General Meeting. A letter naming the ASOIT officer and giving arguments for their removal must accompany the petition.
 - **3.3.2.** The letter and petition must be sent to ASOIT KF at least 3 business days before the next General Meeting.
 - **3.3.3.** An officer subject to a recall may submit materials that can defend their right to maintain their position.
 - **3.3.4.** A recall vote will take place at the next General Meeting of ASOIT KF. Removal shall be approved by a majority vote (2/3) of an established Quorum of the attending ASOIT Officers and RSO representatives. Each recognized RSO, through its representative, has one vote. The vote will be a blind ballot submission.
- **3.4.** Any elected officer of the ASOIT KF Cabinet may face impeachment for failing to perform their duties as described by this Constitution and Bylaws or by violating the Student Code of Conduct.
- **3.5.** Impeachment proceedings must adhere to the following procedure:

- **3.5.1.** A motion of impeachment is initiated by submission of a petition signed by at least fifty percent of the ASOIT KF Cabinet or signed by at least fifty percent of the Registered Student Organizations (RSO) representatives. A letter naming the ASOIT officer and giving arguments for their removal must accompany the petition.
- **3.5.2.** If submitted by the 50% majority of RSO representatives, the letter and petition must be sent to the ASOIT KF Cabinet at least 3 business days before the next General Meeting. If submitted by the 50% majority of the standing ASOIT KF Cabinet, the letter and petition must be added to the agenda and announced to the RSO representatives at least 3 days before the next General Meeting.
- **3.5.3.** An officer subject to an impeachment may submit materials that can defend their right to maintain their position.
- **3.5.4.** Impeachment and removal shall be approved by a majority vote (2/3) of an established Quorum of the attending ASOIT KF officers and RSO representatives, present at the General Meeting wherein the impeachment is held.
- 3.6. Any standing ASOIT Cabinet Member may be placed on a probationary status wherein they are relieved of their roles and responsibilities while ASOIT KF Advisors assess the member's academic success and commitment to the ASOIT KF Cabinet.
 - **3.6.1.** In the event that a standing Cabinet Member's term or overall grade point average falls below 2.75 while in office, that officer may be removed from office subject to review by the ASOIT KF Advisors.

Article V. Meetings

Section 1 Meeting Roles and ASOIT Officer Attendance

- **1.1.** The President, or an ASOIT Officer designated by the President shall act as chair. The President votes only in the event of a tie.
- **1.2.** ASOIT Officers are required to attend all General and Executive Meetings unless a justifiable reason and advanced notification is given to, and approved by, the President, or an ASOIT Advisor.

Section 2. General Meetings

- **2.1.** General Meetings shall be held at least once a month during the academic year. The President may change General Meeting dates with notice posted at least one week prior to the earlier of either the original meeting date or the new meeting date.
- **2.2.** Quorum shall consist of at least two thirds of the ASOIT Officers, and at least half of all RSO, not including any inactive or frozen RSOs. This body shall be named "The Parliament of Owls."
- 2.3. All RSOs are required to have a representative present at the General Meetings, unless a valid reason, and an advanced notification of at least 24 hours, is given to, and approved by, the President, or the Administrative Officer. Students may not represent more than one organization. ASOIT Officers cannot represent RSOs.
- **2.4.** Any interested party may request to speak at a General Meeting by submitting a written request to the ASOIT President or an ASOIT Advisor.
- **2.5.** General Meetings are open meetings and conform with Oregon's laws and

regulations pertaining to public meetings including, but not limited to, ORS 192.610 to 192.690.

Section 3. Executive Meetings

3.1. Any interested party may request to speak at an Executive Meeting by submitting a written or oral request to the ASOIT President, or an ASOIT Advisor.

Article VI. Advisors

Section 1 Roles and Responsibilities

- **1.1.** ASOIT Advisors in Klamath Falls shall be the Vice President for Student Affairs and the Director of Student Involvement and Belonging (SIB) or their delegates.
- **1.2.** If significant issues arise about an advisor's performance, the executive officers should discuss the concerns with the Vice President for Student Affairs. If the concerns are about the VPSA, the officers should speak with the President of the university.
- **1.3.** The role of advisors is to:
 - **1.3.1.** Attend meetings and support ASOIT's goals, activities, and projects.
 - **1.3.2.** Assist with budget development and approve expenditures.
 - **1.3.3.** Provide interpretation of university policies, procedures, rules, regulations, etc.
 - **1.3.4.** Provide support and consultation to the officers, while holding the officers accountable to the constitution and the campuses' bylaws and other governing documents.

Article VII. Bylaws Amendments

Section 1. Amendment Process

- **1.1.** Officers may submit and approve a motion to review and amend the ASOIT KF Bylaws at any executive meeting.
- **1.2.** Amendments shall pass with an established Quorum at an ASOIT KF General Meeting and a 2/3 majority.

Article VIII. Enabling Clause

Section 1. Authority

- **1.1.** Once approved by the current membership of ASOIT KF, these Bylaws become effective and supersede any previous ASOIT KF Bylaws as of the date specified in Bylaws Amendments, Section 1.2.
- **1.2.** These Bylaws shall go into effect on Wednesday, April 16, 2025.